South Somerset District Council

Minutes of a meeting of the South Somerset District Council held on Tuesday 13 October 2015 in The Gateway Community Centre, Addlewell Lane, Yeovil BA20 1QN.

(6.30 pm - 8.55 pm)

Present:

Members: Councillor Mike Best (Chairman)

Councillor Tony Capozzoli (Vice-Chairman)

Clare Aparicio Paul Tim Inglefield Crispin Raikes Wes Read Jason Baker Val Keitch Cathy Bakewell Andy Kendall David Recardo Mike Beech Jenny Kenton Jo Roundell Greene Neil Bloomfield Mike Lewis Svlvia Seal Amanda Broom Sarah Lindsay Gina Seaton Peter Seib Dave Bulmer Mike Lock John Clark Tony Lock **Garry Shortland** Nick Colbert Paul Maxwell **Angie Singleton** Adam Dance Sam McAllister Alan Smith Gve Dibben Graham Middleton Sue Steele Sarah Dyke-Bracher **David Norris** Rob Stickland John Field Graham Oakes Andrew Turpin Nigel Gage Sue Osborne Martin Wale Carol Goodall Tiffany Osborne William Wallace Peter Gubbins Stephen Page Nick Weeks Henry Hobhouse Ric Pallister Colin Winder Kaysar Hussain Shane Pledger Derek Yeomans

Officers

Vega Sturgess Strategic Director (Operations & Customer Focus)
Ian Clarke Assistant Director (Legal and Corporate Services)

Steve Joel Assistant Director (Health & Well-Being)

Donna Parham Assistant Director (Finance & Corporate Services)

Adam Burgan Arts & Entertainment Manager Angela Cox Democratic Services Manager

50. Apologies for Absence (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Marcus Barrett, Anna Groskop, Dean Ruddle, Linda Vijeh and Rina Singh, Interim Chief Executive.

51. Minutes (Agenda Item 2)

The minutes of the meeting held on the 17th September 2015, copies of which had been previously circulated, were approved as a correct record of the meeting and signed by the Chairman.

RESOLVED: that the minutes of the Council meeting held on 17th September 2015 be approved as an accurate record of the meeting.

52. Declarations of Interest (Agenda Item 3)

Councillor David Norris declared a personal interest in Agenda item 7: Westland Leisure Complex, as the Chairman of Wincanton Sports Ground Management Committee.

53. Public Question Time (Agenda Item 4)

The Council were addressed by Mrs Sheila Larcombe, (co-ordinator of the petition to save the Westland Sports Complex), Mr David Neale (Yeovil Town Band), Mrs Carol Barge (in support of Bingo at the Westland Complex), Mr Alex Watts (on behalf of Andy Fairbairn of the Somerset Cricket Board), Mr G Saunders (Chairman of the Westland Bowls Club), Mr Michael Amor (Chairman of the Allotment Association), Mrs Janet Bailey (in support of the Westland Complex), Mr Ted Callow (in support of the Westland Complex), Mr Russell Payne (in support of dance classes at the Westland Complex), Mr Paul Murley (Chairman of the Westland Retirement Association) and Mr Rob Fox (Chairman of the Westland Cricket Club). Their comments included:-

- The petition to save the Westland Sport Complex had started in May 2015 and had over 8,000 signatures from across the district.
- Yeovil is due to expand so this is not the time to close facilities.
- The Yeovil Town Band use the Westland Complex as a rehearsal and storage facility and its members come from across Somerset, Devon and Dorset to practice there.
- Monday night bingo at the Westland Complex attracts over 200 people every week and it is a profitable and social event.
- The cricket ground at the Westland Complex has been highlighted for significant investment in the future by the Somerset Cricket Board.
- The Westland Cricket Club also delivered cricket coaching sessions in local schools.
- The Westland Bowls Club keeps people interested in sport in to their 80's.
- The Westland Allotment Association had been formed in 1975 and many of its members were devastated by the closure of the Complex.
- The Westland Complex had the largest ballroom and sprung floor in the South West.
- People travel from a wide surrounding area to use the leisure and sporting facilities at the Westland Complex.
- Concern at the £1 subsidy proposed to be added to Octagon Theatre tickets to support the Westland Complex – could the funding be sought from the people who use the facility or the people who signed the supporting petition?
- Over 50 people attend the weekly jive class at the Westland Complex and there is usually 150 to 200 people who enjoy the monthly dance freestyle sessions.
- There are 4,500 in the Westland Retirement Association who regret the demise of the facility but know that with the right management it can be a huge success once again if SSDC agree to support it.

 The Westland Cricket Club is a family orientated club with a flourishing schools programme and over 100 young people play weekly in 7 youth teams. We all urge SSDC to save the Westland Sports Complex for the whole of the community.

54. Chairman's Announcements (Agenda Item 5)

The Chairman advised that the meeting would be audio recorded by Radio Ninesprings and would be available to listen to on their website at the conclusion of the meeting.

55. Chairman's Engagements (Agenda Item 6)

The list of Chairman's Engagements was noted.

56. Westland Leisure Complex (Agenda Item 7)

The Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture introduced the report and reminded Members that it had been presented at four committee meetings where Councillors had opportunity to ask questions of officers. She noted that Members were debating the recommendation to approve a loan of £1,865,046 and they should not refer to any of the information contained in the confidential papers. She also advised that the owners of the site, Finmeccanica – AgustaWestland, had been approached regarding the dividing of the sports facilities from the leisure centre but they were not supportive of this proposal.

The Assistant Director (Finance and Corporate Services) provided Members with a power point presentation of the financial implications of the proposed loan, financing and future ongoing operating costs to the Council of taking on the Westland Leisure Complex.

The Arts and Entertainment Manager advised that there were certain events which could not be held at the Octagon Theatre like conferences and flat floor events which could be held at the Westland Leisure Complex. It would also allow a larger public audience to attend some comedy and live music events which were currently held at the Octagon.

The Assistant Director (Health and Well-Being) explained the proposed ticket levy to raise funding towards the Westland Leisure Complex as an agreement made between the artist and the venue.

During a lengthy debate, varying views were expressed. The majority of Members were in support of the proposal to take over the future management and operation of the sporting facilities at the Westland Leisure Complex but some expressed reserve at taking on the leisure facilities. Their comments included:-

- We are one of the largest district councils in the country and we deserve a county facility for the area.
- To support the future of the complex, a Friends of Westlands Sport Club could be set up.
- Support the take-over of the sporting facilities but concerned that taking on the leisure complex could put the Octagon Theatre at risk.
- There is not a realistic business case for the entertainment complex.

- The population in Yeovil is growing and both older and younger people need access to sporting and leisure facilities.
- The complex will need an excellent management team and they should be incentivised to make it profitable.
 - The site is a hub of sustainability with allotments and a cycle path.
- This is not just a facility for Yeovil as people travel across the district to use it.
- Reservation that there is no 5 years business plan to demonstrate a break-even or profit during this period.
- There are risks in taking on this facility but we will monitor and manage them as the project progresses.

Councillor Derek Yeomans asked that his concerns that estimates for the work on the leisure complex could rise and the implications of additional staff to operate a hospitality event be minuted.

At the conclusion of the debate, a named vote was requested by more than 10 Members present. The named vote was taken as follows:-

	For	Against	Abstain
CLARE APARICIO PAUL			Χ
JASON BAKER	Х		
CATHY BAKEWELL	Х		
MARCUS BARRETT	_	_	-
MIKE BEECH			Х
MIKE BEST	Х		
NEIL BLOOMFIELD			Х
AMANDA BROOM	Х		
DAVE BULMER	Х		
TONY CAPOZZOLI	Х		
JOHN CLARK	Х		
NICK COLBERT			Х
ADAM DANCE	Х		
GYE DIBBEN	Х		
SARAH DYKE BRACHER	Х		
JOHN FIELD	Х		
NIGEL GAGE	Х		
CAROL GOODALL	X		
ANNA GROSKOP	_	_	

PETER GUBBINS HENRY HOBHOUSE KAYSAR HUSSEIN	X X X		
KAYSAR HUSSEIN	X		
TIM INGLEFIELD			Х
VAL KEITCH	X		
ANDY KENDALL	Х		
JENNY KENTON	_	_	_
MICHAEL LEWIS			Х
SARAH LINDSAY	X		
MIKE LOCK	X		
TONY LOCK	X		
PAUL MAXWELL	X		
SAM MCALLISTER	X		
GRAHAM MIDDLETON			Х
DAVID NORRIS			Х
GRAHAM OAKES	X		
SUE OSBORNE			Х
TIFFANY OSBORNE			Х
STEPHEN PAGE	_	_	_
RIC PALLISTER	X		
SHANE PLEDGER			X
CRISPIN RAIKES	X		
WES READ	X		
DAVID RECARDO	X		
JO ROUNDELL GREENE	X		
DEAN RUDDLE	_	_	
SYLVIA SEAL	X		
GINA SEATON	X		

	For	Against	Abstain
PETER SEIB	Х		
GARRY SHORTLAND	Х		
ANGIE SINGLETON	Х		
ALAN SMITH	X		
SUE STEELE			Х
ROB STICKLAND	Х		
ANDREW TURPIN	Х		
LINDA VIJEH	-	-	-
MARTIN WALE			Χ
WILLIAM WALLACE			Χ
NICK WEEKS			Х
COLIN WINDER			Х
DEREK YEOMANS			Х
Totals	37	0	17

RESOLVED: That Council agreed:

- 1. To note the report and supporting confidential appendices underpinning the considerations and decisions taken by the District Executive on 1st October 2015.
- 2. To approve a 30 year £1,865,046 Internal Loan at 2.96% interest for use towards refurbishment of the Westland Leisure Complex.

Reason:

To approve a 30 year internal loan towards the costs of refurbishing the Westlands Sports and Leisure Complex in the event SSDC is able to negotiate and secure satisfactory terms with Finmeccanica – AgustaWestland and other funding partners to take over the management and future operation of the Complex.

(Voting: 37 in favour, 0 against, 17 abstentions)

57. Motions (Agenda Item 8)

The following Motion was submitted by Councillor Henry Hobhouse:

Home visits by Carers

Proposal - That this Council urges the Government and the County Council to ensure that home visits by Carers are a minimum of 30 minutes long and that Carers are paid for their travel time.

Councillor Hobhouse advised that several elderly residents in his area received home care visits which were often only 15 minutes in length which was insufficient time to leave them fully dressed or properly fed if needed. He asked that Members support his motion to urge the Government and the County Council to ensure that home visits by Carers were a minimum of 30 minutes long and that Carers were paid for their travel time.

Councillor William Wallace, as Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care at Somerset County Council responded that a recent radio broadcast had said the service was not in crisis but could be in the future without further funding. He pointed out that this was not a District Council service but said he was happy to meet with Councillor Hobhouse to discuss the issue.

During discussion, Members felt that home visits by carers was a national issue and it was not the fault of the County Council but the Government. It was commented that the motion was aimed at supporting the County Council to receive fair funding to provide a good service.

The motion was put to the vote and was agreed by 27 votes in favour and 12 abstentions.

RESOLVED: That this Council will urge the Government and the County Council to

ensure that home visits by Carers are a minimum of 30 minutes long

and that Carers are paid for their travel time.

Reason: To support the welfare of residents in need of support and care workers

in South Somerset.

(Voting: 27 in favour, 0 against, 12 abstentions)

58. Questions Under Procedure Rule 10 (Agenda Item 9)

There were no questions submitted under Procedure Rule 10.

59. Date of Next Meeting (Agenda Item 10)

Members noted that the next meeting of Full Council would take place on **Thursday 22**nd **October 2015** in the Council Chamber, Brympton Way, Yeovil commencing at 7.30 p.m.

irman
 Date